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GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED 

Regd Off: 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai – 400 051 

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022- 42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in) 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held 
on Thursday, September 30, 2021, at 11:00 AM at the corporate office of the Company at New 

Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan Bhawan Complex, Opposite T-3, IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037, 
to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements viz. Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021 together with the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date, and 
Board’s report and Auditors report thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande (DIN 07663196), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF THE COST AUDITOR  
 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force), M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants having firm registration no.000042, 
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the audit 
of the cost records of the Company, for the financial year 2021-22, be paid a remuneration 
of Rs.1,00,000/-(Rupees One Lakh only) plus out of pocket expenses to be reimbursed on 

actual basis and other applicable taxes. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient 

to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

4. APPROVAL FOR APPOINTMENT OF DR. KAVITHA GUDAPATI AS A DIRECTOR OF 

THE COMPANY (DIN: 02506004) 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’, which 
expression shall include any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof), Dr. Kavitha 
Gudapati (DIN: 02506004), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors with effect from February 20, 2021 in terms of Section 161(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and whose term 

of office expires on the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice from one of the Members proposing her candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, whose period 
of office shall be liable to retirement by rotation.” 
 

5. APPROVAL FOR RE-APPOINTMENT OF DR. M. RAMACHANDRAN AS AN 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY (DIN: 01573258) 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Dr. M. Ramachandran 



(DIN: 01573258) who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for 
reappointment, be and is hereby reappointed as an Independent Director of the Company, 
to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive years, up to the Annual General Meeting to be 
held in the year 2026.” 
 

By Order of the Board 
   For GMR Warora Energy Limited 
       

              Sanjay Kumar Babu 
Date: July 26, 2021                            Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi                                                 
  

 
 
NOTES 

 
1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which 

sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto. 
 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY / PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / 

HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY / PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) 
and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
Company. 
 

3. The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies 
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. 
 

4. The Register of Directors‟ shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual 
General Meeting. 
 

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are 
open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all 
working days, except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.  
 

6. Relevant details of Director retiring by rotation at this Meeting as per the provisions of 

the Act and Secretarial Standard -2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India are provided in the “Annexure A” to the Notice. Details 
of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Meeting are mentioned in 
explanatory statement. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

Item No. 3 

 
The Board in its meeting held on July 26, 2021, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
had approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost 

Accountants having firm registration no.000042 to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 at remuneration as detailed in the 
resolution. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by 
the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for 
ratification of the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 
 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice, for approval 
by the members. 
 
None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is in 

any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in these resolutions. 
 
Item No. 4 

 
Dr. Kavitha Gudapati was appointed as an Additional Director of your Company with effect from 

February 20, 2021 vide circular resolution of the Board of Directors passed on February 20, 
2021 and holds office as an Additional Director till the date of this Annual General Meeting in 
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has received a notice from a 
shareholder in terms of the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing 
his candidature for the Directorship of the Company, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.   

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors and the Board of Directors 
in their respective meetings held on July 26, 2021, have recommended the appointment of Dr. 
Kavitha Gudapati as a Director of the Company, whose period of office shall be liable to retire 
by rotation. 

 

Details of Dr. Kavitha Gudapati as per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2): 

S. No. Particulars Dr. Kavitha Gudapati  

1.  DIN 02506004 

2.  Date of Birth November 14, 1974 

3.  Age 46 Years 

4.  Qualifications PhD. Management  

5.  Experience and 
Expertise in 

specific functional 
area 
 

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati is an Organizational Psychologist, 

facilitator, family business advisor and a certified leadership 

Coach. She has a Doctorate in Management, specializing in 
Organizational Behaviour, an MA in Psychology and a Post 
Graduate diploma in basic and advanced counselling skills. 
She is a Certified Coach recognized by the ICF (International 

Coach Federation), also has a ACC – Erickson coach 
certification. She has been trained by Dr. Marshall Goldsmith 
on his approach towards executive coaching. She has ICF 

Approved Certificate Program in "Appreciative Coaching" by 
Fielding Graduate University. She has also undergone Basic 
Human processes lab and Advanced Human processes lab 
under ISABS. She has undergone family business Executive 

Education Programs offered by ISB – Indian School of 

Business, Hyderabad.  

She has over fifteen years of experience covering a wide 
range of industries and projects. She has consulted and 
trained with several organizations such as Bharath Dynamics 
Limited, VOLVO, DRDL, Deloitte, GE- Money, PWC, GMR, Dr. 



Reddy's, Satyam Computers, Airtel, BSNL, BAAN, Intelle 
Group, BSNL, Navayuga Infotech, Cyberabad Police, 
Neospark etc. 

6.  Date of first 
appointment on 
the Board of the 
Company 

February 20,2021 

7.  Number of shares 
held in the 
Company 

- 

8.  List of the 

directorships held 
in other 
companies as on 
March 31, 2021 

 GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 

 GMR Generation Assets Limited 
 GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad Expressways Limited 
 GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 
 GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 

 GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited 
 GMR Highways Limited 
 GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited 

9.  List of the 

Membership in 
Committees held 
in other 
companies as on 
March 31, 2021 

Audit Committee: 

 GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 
 GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
 GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited 
 GMR Highways Limited 
 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 
 GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 
 GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
 GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited 

 GMR Highways Limited 
 
CSR Committee: 
 GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
 GMR Highways Limited 

 GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited 

10.  Number of Board 
Meetings 
attended during 

the year 2020-21 

The details of meetings attended during the year are provided in 
the Board’s Report 2020-21 

11.  Relationship with 
other Directors, 
and other Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

N.A. 

12.  Terms of 
appointment / 

remuneration 

As per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company 
Annexed to the Board’s Report 2020-21. Sitting fees as approved 

by the Board 

 
Keeping in view her vast expertise and knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company 
that Dr. Kavitha Gudapati is appointed as Director on the Board of the Company. The Company 

has received her consent and requisite disclosures for the aforesaid appointment.  
 
Save and except Dr. Kavitha Gudapati, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the resolution.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval of the shareholders. 
 
Item No. 5  

 

Dr. M. Ramachandran was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 
January 09, 2018 and is holding office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held 
in the year 2021. This being the first term of Dr. M. Ramachandran, he can be appointed 

for another term as an Independent Director of the Company.   



 
Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, an independent director shall 

hold office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years and is eligible for reappointment for 

another term of up to 5 (five) consecutive years on passing of special resolution by the 
Company and disclosure in the Boards’ Report. The Independent Director is not liable to 
retire by rotation.  
 

Details of Dr. M. Ramachandran as per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2): 

S. No. Particulars Dr. M. Ramachandran  

1.  DIN 01573258 

2.  Date of Birth June 14, 1950 

3.  Age 71 Years 

4.  Qualifications PhD.  

5.  Experience and 

Expertise in 
specific functional 
area 
 

Dr. M. Ramachandran, a retired officer of Indian 

Administration Service has held various prestigious positions 
in his early years of service like that of Collector and District 
Magistrate of Bijnor and Rae Bareli in Uttar Pradesh, 

Divisional Commissioner of Meerut, Garhwal & Bareilly 
Divisions where he took various new initiatives and received 
the appreciation of public. As the First National Officer on 
deputation to United Nations Development Programme 

(UNDP), India, he has handled assignment as Head of the 
Industry Trade Sector Programme supervising Project 
formulation and implementation covering Ministries of 
Industry, Commerce, Textiles, Steel, Electronics, etc. He 

developed India’s 1st Leather Sector and Jute sector 
Programmes totaling $38 million and obtained approval by 
presenting these two programs before the UNDP’s Governing 
Council at New York. Apart from the International assignment 
and the postings in the States of U.P. and Uttaranchal he has 
also served as Private Secretary to Union Minister of State in 
the Ministries of Industries, Finance, Commerce, Internal 

Security, and Power. He has also worked for the Government 
of India as Joint Secretary, Ministry of Shipping. He has 
served as Principal Secretary to Chief Minister of Uttaranchal, 

Additional Chief Secretary in-charge of Infrastructure, 
supervising and coordinating 16 departments and structured 
the Infrastructure Vision for the State and his initiatives have 
enabled the State to be on the path of steady development 

and have been responsible for rapid industrialization of the 
State. He has held the position of Chairman of State Industrial 

Development Corporation and of Infrastructure Development 
Corporations as Joint Ventures of IDFC and IL&FS. He was 

Secretary, Ministry of Urban Development in Government of 
India.  He was Chairman of the Metro Rail Corporation of 
Delhi, Bangalore, Kolkata and Chennai. Dr. M Ramachandran 

holds a post graduate degree in Economics and is a Master of 
Philosophy in the subject of Economic Planning from 
University of Glasgow. He has a PhD.  in Project Planning. 

6.  Date of first 
appointment on 
the Board of the 
Company 

January 09, 2018 

7.  Number of shares 
held in the 
Company 

- 

8.  List of the 

directorships held 
in other 
companies as on 
March 31, 2021 

 GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

 GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 
 Sanmarg Projects Private Limited 
 Delhi International Airport Limited 
 GMR Energy Limited 



 Cochin Smart Mission Limited 
 GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited 

9.  List of the 

Membership in 
Committees held 
in other 
companies as on 
March 31, 2021 

Audit Committee: 

 GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

 GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 

 Delhi International Airport Limited 

 GMR Energy Limited 

 Cochin Smart Mission Limited 

 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

 GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

 GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 

 Delhi International Airport Limited 

 GMR Energy Limited 

 Cochin Smart Mission Limited 

 
CSR Committee: 

 GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

 GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 

 GMR Energy Limited 

10.  Number of Board 
Meetings 

attended during 
the year 2020-21 

The details of meetings attended during the year are provided in 
the Board’s Report 2020-21 

11.  Relationship with 
other Directors, 

and other Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

N.A. 

12.  Terms of 

appointment / 
remuneration 

As per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company 

Annexed to the Board’s Report 2020-21. Sitting fees as approved 
by the Board 

 

 

Keeping in view his vast experience and expertise and on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors recommends the 

resolution for approval by the shareholders as a Special resolution.  
 
The Company has received declaration from Dr. M. Ramachandran that he meets the criteria 
for independence as prescribed under section 149 of the Act. He is not disqualified from being 

a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. 

 
No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives except Dr. M. Ramachandran, to whom 
the resolution relates, is interested or concerned in the resolution. 

 
All documents referred to in the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on 
all working days, except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting 
 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
  For GMR Warora Energy Limited        

              

  Sanjay Kumar Babu 
Date: July 26, 2021                          Company Secretary 

Place: New Delhi                                                

   

 

 

 



Annexure A 

Details of Director retiring by rotation seeking re-appointment at this Meeting 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande 

 

1.  DIN 07663196 

2.  Date of Birth October 31, 1962 

3.  Age 58 Years 

4.  Qualifications MBA 

5.  Experience and 
Expertise in specific 
functional area 
 

Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande is the whole-time director of the 
Company. He is a BE. (Mech) from Govt Engineering College, 
Aurangabad and MBA from Marathwada University. He   has 

over 30 years of rich experience in Power Plant (O & M), 
Commissioning management, strategic sigma methodology, 
Business excellence, commercial aspect of power generation, 

power sale, coal sourcing. He also worked extensively in 

commissioning of a wide spectrum of equipment of Power 
Plants of capacity 210, 250, 300 & 600 MW. Prior to joining 
GMR he has worked in Lanco Power Limited in their Corporate 

O & M division as Vice-president (Operation Services), 
Reliance Energy Limited, MSEB, Chandrapur & Nasik Thermal 
Power Station Eklahre and NRB Pvt. Ltd. 

6.  Date of first 

appointment on the 
Board of the 
Company 

November 23, 2016 

7.  Number of shares 
held in the 
Company 

- 

8.  List of the 

directorships held 
in other companies 
as on March 31, 
2021 

NIL 

9.  List of the 
Membership in 
Committees held in 
other companies 

NIL 

10.  Number of Board 
Meetings attended 
during the year 

2020-21 

The details of meetings attended during the year are provided in 
the Board’s Report 2020-21 

11.  Relationship with 
other Directors, 
and other Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

N.A. 

12.  Terms of 
appointment / 

remuneration 

As per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company 
Annexed to the Board’s Report 2020-21 

13.  Details of last 
drawn 
remuneration 

Rs.87.77 lac p.a. (within the limits as approved by the 
shareholders at an extra ordinary general meeting held on 
February 13, 2020) 

14.  Details of 
Remuneration 
sought to be paid 

Upto Rs.95 Lac per annum (as approved by the shareholders at 
an extra ordinary general meeting held on February 13, 2020) 

 

By Order of the Board 
  For GMR Warora Energy Limited        

                

Sanjay Kumar Babu 
Date: July 26, 2021                          Company Secretary 

Place: New Delhi                                                

   



 

 

GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED 

Regd Off: 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai – 400 051 

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022- 42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in) 

 
Attendance Slip 

 

DP ID   FOLIO NO. / 
CLIENT ID 

 No. of shares  

 

 

Name(s) and address of the member in full: ______________________________________  

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company 

to be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021, at 11:00 AM at the corporate office of the 

Company at New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan Bhawan Complex, Opposite T-3, IGI Airport, New 

Delhi-110037. 

 

 

 

Member  Proxy 

 

 

______________________ 

              Signature of Member / Proxy 



GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED 

Regd Off: 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai – 400 051 

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022- 42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in) 

 
Proxy form 

Form No. MGT-11 

 [Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the 

member(s): 
Registered address: 

 E-mail Id: 

Folio No/Client Id*: 
DP ID*: 

 

I/We, being the member (s) of_____________ shares of GMR Warora Energy Limited, hereby 

appoint: 

1._______________________of_______________having e-mail id ____________or falling 
him 
2._______________________of_______________having e-mail id ____________or falling 

him 
3._______________________of_______________having e-mail id ____________or  
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 
Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, September 30, 
2021, at 11:00 AM at the corporate office of the Company at New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan 

Bhawan Complex, Opposite T-3, IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037 and / or at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

S. No. Ordinary Business 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon. 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande (DIN 07663196), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment 

 Special Business 

3. Ratification of remuneration of the cost auditor for the FY 2021-22. 

4. Approval for appointment of Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (DIN: 02506004) as a director of the 
company 

 

5. Approval for re-appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran (DIN: 01573258) as an 
Independent Director of the Company 

 
Signed this ___________________ day of __________________2021 

______________________  
Signature of Member  
_______________________  
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
Notes: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

VENUE MAP OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED 

SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2021  

 

 



 

 

GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED  
Registered Office: No.701/704, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A Wing,  
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 051 

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022-42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in) 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 

To the Members,  

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Sixteenth Annual Report of the 
Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 
2021. 
 

FINANCIAL / OPERATIONAL SUMMARY  

 

The financial status of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is as under: 
                                                                                        (Amount in Rs. million) 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
Year ended 

March 31, 2020 

Income 14773.27 18497.97 

Expenditure  15673.68 17762.47 

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (840.16) 735.50 

Tax expense (206.88) 2873.57 

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation     (633.28) (2138.07) 

Total Comprehensive income for the year                                     (631.00) (2138.89) 
 

STATUS OF THE PROJECT 

 
The Plant consists of 2 x 300 MW coal fired Units with all associated auxiliaries and Balance of 
Plant Systems. Both the 300 MW units (Unit #1, #2) have been constructed, commissioned 
and COD of both the units have already been declared and are operational. The power purchase 
agreement (PPA) with DNH (One amongst the three PPA’s) expired in June’20. Currently the 
Company is selling this untied power in open market through Indian Energy Exchange (IEX).  
Post expiry of DNH PPA, Annual Contract quantities of Unit #2 reduce to 0.35 Million Tonnes 
per annum. To enhance fuel security, the Company successfully shifted U-2 FSA from South 
Eastern Coals fields Limited (SECL) to Western Coalfield Limited (WCL).  Now company has an 
agreement for a total ACQ of 1.65 Million Tonnes (1.3 from SECL and 0.35 from WCL). The 
balance coal requirement is fulfilled through E-Auction Coal.  
 
Major Highlights of the FY 2020-21: 

 
 Plant has achieved gross PLF of 74.9% with 97.5% machine availability. 

 PPA compliance for MSEDCL is 91%, DNH is 97% and TNSLDC is 91%.  

 Reliable operation of the plant had resulted in significant improvement of key 

performing indicators like reduction in Station heat rate, APC etc, DM make up which is 

best among the peers.  

 138% Ash Utilization was achieved by tying with nearby Cement Industries, NHAI for 

Fly Ash & various Brick Manufacturers for Bottom Ash.  

 In quest for new avenues for Ash utilization, GWEL became the first plant in central 

division to send conditioned ash through rail mode.  

 100% compliances to all applicable Legal & Statutory requirement was Completed. 

Continuous monitoring & updating is being done through Legatrix.  

 11 continuous improvement projects completed by using Six-Sigma methodology 

resulted in improving efficiency and reliability of machine.  

Awards: 

 The Company was awarded the prestigious ‘National Energy Conservation Award-

2020’ for 2nd time by the Government of India  



 

 

 The Company also won ‘National award for excellence in Energy management by 

CII’ for 3rd consecutive year and emerged as National Energy Leader.  

 
Certifications: 
 

 In a First in India, GWEL Water management system is certified for ISO 46001:2019 

by M/s BVCI.  

 Successfully carried out ‘Workplace Assessment for Safety and Hygiene’ (WASH) 

assessment in line with the standard developed by M/s Quality Council of India in 

view of COVID-19. Audit was conducted by M/s BVCI.  

 To create a conducive work environment for workforce, the Company successfully 

implemented SA 8000:2014 and is certified by M/s BVCI.  

 ISO 9001, EnMS, ISMS surveillance audit successfully completed without any non-

conformities.   

Way Forward:                   
 

 Capital Overhauling of U-2 HIP turbine and generator.  

 Installation of 5MW Floating solar plant at reservoir.  

 APC reduction by installation of intelligent flow controller in Air compressor to improve 

efficiency and Installation of VFD in Induced draft fans. 

 
Impact of Covid-19 

 

Electricity supply is notified as essential services by Ministry of Home affairs. The Company 
is generating electricity as per demand from DISCOMs. However, the power offtake by 
DISCOMs across the country has gone down including the DISCOMs which offtake power 
from the Company. Besides, coal materialization is reduced because of lockdown and delay 
in collection from customers. Coal India Limited allowed purchase of coal through letter of 
credit, which is availed by Company to maintain consistent supply of coal.  Recovery of 
regulatory receivables is also delayed due to lockdown/ CERC adjournment.  
 
The Company has availed moratorium offered by Reserve Bank of India for conversion of 
interest during moratorium into funded interest term loan for interest from 1st March 2020 
to 31st August 2021. DISCOMS has paid dues for power bill under Atmanirbhar Scheme. 
Moratorium from Reserve Bank of India, realization under Atmanirbhar Scheme and LC 
facility for purchase of coal has facilitated Company to increase plant load factor. 
 
The Company’s PPA with got expired on 30th June 2020 which was not renewed due to 
COVID 19 lockdown. DNH has invoked force majeure in March 2020 resulting in non-
payment of capacity charges pertaining to period from March 2020 to June 2020. Company 
has filed petition with CERC for recovery of capacity charges. After expiry of DNH PPA, 
untied capacity of 200 MW is sold in exchange market. This has resulted in contraction of 
margin and non-recovery of fixed costs. 
 
The Company has complied with statutory obligations on timely basis. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY  
 
During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:  

 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the company 
between 31st March 2021 and the date of Board’s Report. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL 

 



 

 

The Company’s authorized capital stands at Rs.11,000,000,000 divided into 900,000,000 equity 
shares of Rs.10/- each and 200,000,000 preference shares of Rs.10/- each. The current paid-
up capital consists of 87,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 170,008,060 Compulsorily 
Convertible Preference shares of Rs.10/- each. 
 
The Company continues to retain its status as direct subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited, and by 
virtue of section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), it continues to be subsidiary of 
GMR Infrastructure Limited. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies of its 
own and hence the statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 
Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures, as required to be provided in Form–AOC 
1, is not applicable. 
 
NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR  
 
Since the Company does not have Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company, this 
section is not applicable. 
 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board do not recommend any dividend for the year 2020-21. 
 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

During the year there was no transfer of fund to any reserves. 
 
BOARD MEETING 

 
The Board of Directors met six times during the financial year. The intervening gap between 
two consecutive meetings was in compliance with the provisions of the Act and circulars 
issued in this regard by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, during the year. The details are 
given in the Corporate Governance section of this Report.  
 
FIXED DEPOSITS 

 
During the year under review the Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed 
deposits from the public.  
 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

During the year under review, the Company had 2 Independent Directors in terms of the 
provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), namely, Dr. M. 
Ramachandran and Mr. S.K. Goel. 
 
Both Independent Director possesses appropriate skill, experience, knowledge and criteria 
of independence and has furnished to the Company a declaration in terms of the provisions 
of Section 149(7) of the Act stating that his fulfilling the criteria of independence laid down 
in Section 149(6) of the Act. Each Independent Director is empanelled with databank 
registered with Ministry of Corporate Affairs under The Companies (Creation and 
Maintenance of Databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019 and the Company has 
received declaration from both the Independent Directors to that effect. 
 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of annual return in Form MGT 7 is available at the 
Company’s webpage at https://www.gmrgroup.in/warora-energy-ltd/. 

https://www.gmrgroup.in/warora-energy-ltd/


 

 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby 

confirm that: 

 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) 
of the Act: 
 
a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March 2021, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 
b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial 

Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have 
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the 
year ended on that date; 

 
c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 
e) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down 

and that the financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 
f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 
 

The Company has not given any loan to a fellow subsidiary/holding company during the year 
ended March 31, 2021, for the purpose of providing financial assistance. The Company has 
not provided any security or guarantee to any other company during the year under review.  
Further, no investment was made by the Company in the securities of other companies 
during the year. 
 
AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Statutory Auditors:  
 

M/s S.R Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company 
were appointed at the AGM held on September 27, 2019 to hold the office for a period of five 
years, until the conclusion of eth AGM to be held in the year 2024. Accordingly, they continue 
to be the Auditors of the Company. The Company has received letter from them to the 
effect that their appointment continues to be within the prescribed limits under Section 
141(3)(g) of the Act and they are not disqualified for the remaining tenure of their 
appointment. 
 
The requirement for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by shareholders at 
every Annual General Meeting under section 139 of the Act has been removed by the 
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017. 
 
The audit report on the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
March 31, 2021 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.  The 
notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and 
do not call for any further comments.  
 
No fraud has been reported by the Auditors u/s 143(12) during the FY 2020-21. 
 



 

 

Secretarial Auditors: 

 

M/s S. Behera & Co, Practising Company Secretaries, were appointed as Secretarial Auditors 
to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial 
Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith as Annexure-

I to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark. 
 
Cost Auditors:  

 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Narasimha Murthy & Co. Cost Accountants, to 
conduct Cost Audit for the financial year 2020-21. The Cost audit for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Cost 
Audit Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 was filed in XBRL 
mode on November 19, 2020.  
The Cost Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is under process. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO: 

 

(A) Conservation of energy: 

 

Following steps are taken on conservation of Energy which optimizes the Auxiliary consumption 
of Plant: 
 

 Energy conservation through study and implementation of flexible operation 

methodology.  

 Heat rate improvement through replacement of 12 Cooling tower heat exchange 

elements.  

 Reduction in auxiliary power consumption by improving the recovery of RO up to 72%.  

 Optimization of Coal handling losses by implementing Just in time methodology in coal 

handling plant.  

 Energy Conservation by installation of Wind Driven Exhaust fan in RO-DM building Roof 

Top.  

 Auxiliary power consumption reduction in River water pumping system by study of 

pump harmonics and impact on power consumption.  

 

(B) Technology absorption: 

 

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption: 

 

 Generator Excitation panel replacement during annual overhauling which improved the 

dynamic response of the generator. 

 Upgradation of Unit 2 DCS (Distributed control system) Operating system windows XP 

to windows 10 to improve system reliability.  

 Installation of auto operational sensor lights at different location of plant. 

 Replacement of Conventional exhaust fans with energy efficient exhaust fans. 

 

(C) Environment Health and safety: 

 

 Achieved 100% safe man hours and this is 7th consecutive year of ‘Zero Lost Time 

Injury’.  
 

 Successfully carried out ‘Workplace Assessment for Safety and Hygiene’ (WASH) 
assessment in line with the standard developed by M/s Quality Council of India in view 

of COVID-19. Audit was conducted by M/s BVCI.National Productivity Council of India 

(NPC) conducted audit on 5S. 



 

 

 

 As a part of Emergency preparedness and strengthening safety system, workshop 

organized during National safety week with the theme of “Learn from disaster and 

prepare for a Safer Future”. Various emergencies/ safety disasters of peers, other 
industry discussed in detail and prepared action plan for prevention of occurrence.   

 

 As a part of cross functional Learning and knowledge sharing of safety initiatives, EHS 

Darshan - Theme based EHS Training Model Exhibition was organized.  

 

 Initiated Mass plantation of 10,000 plants in and around plant vicinity under the theme 

of “Connecting People to Nature”. 
 

 Implementation of End to End comprehensive EHS management system “SARATHI”. 
Digitalized all 27 modules online also incorporated with Microsoft Outlook and SAP. 

 

 To manage the health and wellness at the workplace, series of programs taken under 
“Nirmal Jeevan” 

 

o Better body Better life – Half yearly & Annual Medical Checkups 

o Kausalika - Know your wellness with COO 
o Counseling to employees on Emotional Immunity 
o Yoga Shibir 
o Fun run, Sports activities 
o 15 Mock drills & Fire drills 

 

 World Environment Day - Road Safety Month - National Safety Week celebrated in order 
to promote and raise awareness.  

 
2. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished: - Not applicable 
 

(a) Details of technology imported- N.A 
(b) Year of import. N.A 
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed. N.A 
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 
therefore. N.A 

 
3. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 
 
(C): Foreign Exchange  

 

Foreign Exchange Earnings during the Financial Year 2020-21 is Rs.24, 846/- 
Foreign Exchange Outflow during the Financial Year 2020-21 is Rs.3,80,56,363/- 
 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS  

 

During the year under review, Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) and 
Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) has issued the following order: 
 
1. The Company had filed the petition (284/MP/2018) before CERC pursuant to APTEL 

judgment dated 14.08.2018 passed in Appeal No.111 of 2017 wherein Coal Pass 
Through (CPT), Busy season surcharge & Development Surcharge, and carrying cost 
etc. were allowed in favor of the Company and matter was remanded to CERC for 
passing consequential orders. Based on the direction of the Appellate Tribunal 
Aggrieved against CERC order dated 16.05.2019, Dadra Nagar Haveli (DNH) has filed 
an Appeal (283/2019), APTEL vide its Order dated 13.10.2020 dismissed the Appeal. 
The order disposed of in favour of the Company upholding CERC Order w.r.t. CPT and 
CIL computation. 
 

2. The Company had filed the petition (284/MP/2018) before CERC pursuant to APTEL 
judgment dated 14.08.2018 passed in Appeal No.111 of 2017 wherein Coal Pass 



 

 

Through (CPT), Busy season surcharge & Development Surcharge, and carrying cost 
etc. were allowed in favor of the Company and matter was remanded to CERC for 
passing consequential orders. Based on the direction of the Appellate Tribunal 
Aggrieved against CERC order dated 16.05.2019, Maharashtra State Electricity 
Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL) has filed an Appeal (353/2019), APTEL vide 
its Order dated 11.03.2021 dismissed the Appeal. The order disposed of in favour of 
the Company upholding CERC Order w.r.t. CPT and CIL computation. 
 

3. Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL) had filed a 
petition (108/2020) before Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC) for 
consideration of discount in Merit Order Dispatch (MOD) computation. MERC vide its 
Order dated 01.02.2021 dismissed the Petition. The order disposed of in favour of the 
Company. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  

  

All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The 
Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the 
books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the Company 
checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted 
by the Company. The Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and 
procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

 
During the year under review, Ms. Meena Raghunathan resigned from the directorship of 
the Company w.e.f. November 21, 2020.  
 
Following appointments were made during the year: 
 Dr. Kavitha Gudapati was appointed as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. February 20, 

2021. 

 Mr. Srinivas Bommidala was re-appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. April 01, 2021 

and 

 Mr. Ashis Basu was re-appointed as Whole Time Director w.e.f. April 15, 2021. 

Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande is retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible has offered himself for reappointment. 
 
During the year under review, the following officials continued holding the position(s) of KMP:  
 Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande as Whole-time Director of the Company. 
 Mr. Ashish Vinay Deshpande as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company.  
 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Babu as Company Secretary of the Company. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial 
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
basis and hence, did not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules framed thereunder, the particulars required to be disclosed pursuant to 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in prescribed Form AOC- 2, are, thus, 
not applicable to the Company. The details of transactions are provided in the financial 
statement (Please refer to Note 30 to the financial statement). 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM 

 
To maintain high level of legal, ethical and moral standards and to provide a gateway for 
employees to voice concern in a responsible and effective manner about serious malpractice, 
impropriety, abuse or wrongdoing within the organization, the Company has a Whistle 
Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism in place, applicable to the Company, its holding company, 
fellow subsidiaries and other Group Companies. This mechanism has been communicated to 



 

 

all concerned. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is administered appropriately by the 
Group Ombudsperson who will provide a quarterly update to BCM (IB & G).  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The Company has a detailed risk management framework duly approved by the Audit 
Committee and the Board. The Company’s risk management framework is in line with the 
current best practices and effectively addresses the emerging challenges in a dynamic 
business environment. In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for 
mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. 
As a matter of policy, risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the 
same. 
 
DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE  

 
GMR Group ensures and maintains the liability insurance for its Directors and Officers of all 
its subsidiaries. The Group believes that it is appropriate to provide such cover to protect 
the directors from any innocent error arisen if any, as the Directors carry significant liability 
under criminal and civil law. 
  
All the Directors of the Company are covered by Directors’ & Officers Liability Policy taken 
by GMR Infrastructure Limited, holding Company with the Insurance Company. 
 
FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out the annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of the Board. 
The Board evaluates the performance of all Executive, Non-executive and Independent 
Directors. All the Non-executive and Independent Directors are eminent personalities having 
wide experience in the field of business, industry and administration. Their presence on the 
Board is advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions. The evaluation was based 
on structured questionnaire, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as 
adequacy of the composition of the Board, Board culture, execution and performance of 
specific duties, obligations and governance. 
 
LISTING 

 

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on the debt segment of BSE Ltd. 
The annual listing fee for the year 2020-21 has been paid to the Exchange. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board 
of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 
 
DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 

ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
There was neither any pending proceedings nor any new application made under Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 Of 2016) during the year. 
 
DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF 

  

There was no one-time settlement done during the financial year 2020-21. 
 

 

 



 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013  

 

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for 
every individual working in its premises through various interventions and practices. The 
Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.  
 
GMR Group recognizes that sexual harassment violates fundamental rights of gender 
equality, right to life, liberty and right to work with human dignity as guaranteed by the 
Constitution of India. The Group had constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 
and had implemented a detailed policy against sexual harassment at work place. During the 
year ended 31 March, 2021, no complaint of sexual harassment was received.  
 
Awareness programmes were conducted across the Company to sensitize employees to 
uphold the dignity of their colleagues at the workplace, particularly with respect to 
prevention of sexual harassment. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

A Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board at its meeting held on 
June 04, 2021. The CSR Policy of the Company is given as Annexure-II. 
 

During the year, the Company has spent Rs.125.94 lakh on CSR activities, against the 
prescribed amount of Rs.238.80 Lakh for the FY 2020-21 as per the terms of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Due to COVID 19 most of the field activities were 
suspended/closed for most part of the year, hence budget allocated could not be utilized 
fully. The same was brought to the notice of the CSR Committee which recognized the 
challenges for under-spending and recommended to the Board that the unspent amount will 
be kept in a separate Unspent CSR Account of the company. The same was approved by the 
Board. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure-III. 
 

DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

  

Pursuant to Clause 53 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, the Company discloses information as under: 
 
Details of Debenture Trustee: 

Name of the Debenture 
Trustee 

M/s Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Address  Axis House, 2nd Floor, Axis House, Bombay 
Dyeing Mills Compound, Pandurang Budhakar 
Marg, Worli, Mumbai-400025.  
Telephone No-022-24255237 

Contact Person- Mr. Sameer Kabra 
Assistant General Manager 

 
The audited financial statements i.e balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, profit and loss 
account and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021, auditors’ report 
and Directors report forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
Details of the related party disclosures have been made in the notes to accounts of the 
audited financial statements. 
 
INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(1) OF CHAPTER XIII OF COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 
employees and the performance of the Company for the year 2020-21 is as below: 



 

 

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala, Managing Director: 29; Mr. Ashis Basu, WTD:22.46 Mr. S.N 
Barde, WTD :25.44; Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande, WTD:9.18; 
 
The performance of the Company has been already mentioned in 
financial/operational summary section of the Board’s Report.  
 

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: No Increment 
 

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial 
year: Approximately -5.07% 

 
d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as of March 31, 

2021 is 195. 
 

e. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
Remuneration: No Increments in Managerial Remuneration 
 

f. the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the 
directors: The increments given on 1st July every year depended on performance 
ratings and as per Group Corporate Policy 

 

g. It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  

 
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under:  
 

i. Employed for the financial year with an average salary of Rs.1.02 crore per annum and 
above. 

Name Designati
on 

Remunerati
on received 
(Rs.)  
 

Nature 
of 
Employ-
ment 
Contract
ual or 
Perman
ent  

Qualific
ation 
and 
Experie
nce (in 
years)  
 

Date of 
joining  
 

A
ge 
of 
E
m
pl
oy
ee  
 

Particul
ars of 
last 
employ
ment  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employe
e in the 
Compan
y  
 

Relative 
of any 
director or 
manager 
of the 
Company, 
if any. 

Srinivas 
Bommidala 

Business 
Chairman - 
Energy 

27,728,410.
27 

Permane
nt 

B.Com 
(28.32) 

08.03.2004 58 
Bommi
dala 
Group 

Nil N.A 

Sanjay 
Barde CEO - 

Energy 
Business 

24,321,669.
07 Permane

nt B.E( 
42.49) 

02.07.2004 64 

BSES/R
ELIANC
E 
ENERGY 

Nil N.A 

Ashis Basu CEO - 
Energy 
Corporate 

21,475,610.
46 

Permane
nt 

C.A( 
34.6) 

17.12.2001 59 
BALAGA
RH 
POWER 

Nil N.A 

Mohan S Sector HR 
Head - 
Energy & 
Itnl. 
Airports 

12,531,239.
24 

Permane
nt 

MHRM( 
32.09) 

16.08.2010 58 
JSW 
Energy 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

 
 



 

 

ii. Details of top ten employees in terms of remuneration 
Name Designati

on 
Remunerati
on received 
(Rs.)  
 

Nature of 
Employ-
ment 
Contractu
al or 
Permane
nt  

Qualif
icatio
n and 
Experi
ence 
(in 
years
)  
 

Date of 
joining  
 

Ag
e 
of 
Em
plo
yee  
 

Particulars 
of last 
employme
nt  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employe
e in the 
Compan
y  
 

Relativ
e of 
any 
directo
r or 
manag
er of 
the 
Compa
ny, if 
any. 

Srinivas 
Bommidala 

Business 
Chairman 
- Energy 

27,728,410.
27 Permane

nt 

B.Co
m 
(28.3
2) 

08.03.2004 58 
Bommidal
a Group 

Nil N.A 

Sanjay 
Barde 

CEO - 
Energy 
Business 

24,321,669.
07 Permane

nt 

B.E( 
42.49
) 

02.07.2004 64 
BSES/REL
IANCE 
ENERGY 

Nil N.A 

Ashis Basu CEO - 
Energy 
Corporate 

21,475,610.
46 

Permane
nt 

C.A( 
34.6) 

17.12.2001 59 
BALAGAR
H POWER 

Nil N.A 

Mohan S Sector HR 
Head - 
Energy & 
Itnl. 
Airports 

12,531,239.
24 

Permane
nt 

MHRM
( 
32.09
) 

16.08.2010 58 
JSW 
Energy 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Dhananjay 
Deshpande 

Chief 
Operating 
Officer - 
GWEL 

8,777,311.8
0 Permane

nt MBA ( 
35.3) 

24.09.2012 58 
Lanco 
Power 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Nirjhar 
Sarkar Chief 

Financial 
Controller 
- Energy 

8,217,640.3
8 

Permane
nt 

PhD ( 
15.12
) 

17.08.2017 60 

Alstom 
Bharat 
Forge 
Project P 
Ltd 

Nil N.A 

Arabinda 
Pani 

Head - 
Operation
s & 
Maintenan
ce 

6,542,450.8
0 

Permane
nt 

PGDB
M( 
34.21
) 

11.03.2015 57 

KSK 

Nil N.A 

Manmohan 
Sharma 

Head - 
Working 
Capital, 
Cash Flow 
Mgmt & 

5,448,785.8
5 

Permane
nt 

B.Co
m( 
25.85
) 05.03.2014 48 

Suzlon 
Energy 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Abhaykum
ar 
Janardan 
Choudhari 

Head - 
C&I and 
OS 

5,274,110.6
6 Permane

nt 
PGD( 
28.68 
) 17.07.2015 51 

KSK 
MAHANAD
HI POWER 
COMPANY 

Nil N.A 

Vishal 
Nayer 

Head 
Finance - 
GWEL, 
GEMS, 
Hydro & 
LNG P 

4,781,886.0
7 

Permane
nt PGDB

M ( 
23.87
) 21.02.2017 46 

AVANTHA 
POWER & 
INFRASTR
UCTURE 
LTD 

Nil N.A 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

iii. Employees who are employed for a part of the year and drawing remuneration of Rs.8.5 
Lakh or more per month. 

Name Designat
ion 

Remu
nerati
on 
receiv
ed 
(Rs. in 
cr)  
 

Nature of 
Employ-
ment 
Contractu
al or 
Permanent  

Qualif
icatio
n and 
Exper
ience 
(in 
years
)  
 

Date 
of 
joinin
g  
 

Age of 
Emplo
yee  
 

Particulars 
of last 
employment  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employe
e in the 
Compan
y  
 

Relative 
of any 
director 
or 
manager 
of the 
Compan
y, if any. 

          

 

 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1.  
2. The Company has always placed thrust on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, 

responsibility and accountability. The Company runs on the broad principles of Corporate 
Governance and lays emphasis on best practices in achieving its objectives. The Company as a 
part of GMR Group continues to drive innovations in policies, practices and disclosures on corporate 
political activities and other key governance areas. 
 

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
a) Composition: The Board of the Company comprises of the following Directors: 

 
S.No. Name of the Director Position Category 

1.  Mr. Srinivas Bommidala Managing Director Executive 

2.  Mr. Ashis Basu Whole-time Director Executive 

3.  Mr. S.N. Barde Whole-time Director Executive 

4.  Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande Whole-time Director Executive 

5.  Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Director Non-Executive 

6.  Mr. S. Rajagopal Director Non-Executive 
7.  Dr. M Ramachandran Director Independent Director 
8.  Mr. S.K Goel Director Independent Director 

 

b) Meetings of the Board: 
 
Seven meetings (Six main meetings and One adjourned meeting) of the Board were 
held on the following dates during the year ended on March 31, 2021: 

 
1. May 22, 2020,  
2. Adjourned Meeting held on May 29, 2020, 
3. July 24, 2020, 
4. September 29, 2020, 
5. November 02, 2020, 
6. January 19, 2021, 
7. March 30, 2021 

 
The details of attendance at Board Meetings either in person or through video conferencing 
during the financial year 2020-21 and at the Annual General Meeting of the Company are 
detailed below: 
Name of 
Directors/DIN 

 Attendance at the Board 
Meeting(s) 

Attendance 
at last AGM 

Held Held during 
tenure 

Attended 

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 
(DIN:00081464) 

7 7 1 Yes 



 

 

Mr. Ashis Basu 
(DIN: 01872233) 

7 7 2 No 

S. N Barde 
(DIN: 03140784) 

7 7 6 No 

Mr. Dhananjay 
Deshpande 
(DIN:07663196) 

7 7 7 No 

Mr. Rajagopal S. 7 7 7 No 
Ms. Meena 
Raghunathan 
(07145001)* 

7 5 2 No 

Dr. Kavitha 
Gudapati (DIN: 
02506004)# 

7 1 0 No 

Dr. M 
Ramachandran 
(DIN:01573258) 

7 7 7 No 

Mr. S. K Goel 
(DIN:00492659) 

7 7 7 No 

*Resigned from directorship w.e.f. November 21, 2020 
#Appointed as a Director w.e.f. February 20, 2021 

 
Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 

 
The Independent Directors held a Meeting on July 24, 2020, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors were 
present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail: 
 
I) Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
II)Reviewed the performance of the Whole-time Director of the Company, taking into account 

the views of other Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 
III)Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties. 

 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION 

 

a) Composition of the Committee. 

 

The current composition of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

Name Position Category 

Dr. M Ramachandran Member Independent 

Mr. S.K Goel Member Independent 

Mr. S.N. Barde Member Executive 

 
The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year 
were accepted by the Board. 
 

b)  Meetings of the Audit Committee: 
 

Five Meetings (Four Main meetings and One adjourned Meeting) of the Audit 
Committee were held on the following dates during the year ended on March 31, 
2021: 
 
1. May 22, 2020  
2. Adjourned Meeting held on May 29, 2020, 
3. July 24, 2020, 
4. November 02, 2020, 
5. January 19, 2021 



 

 

 
The Committee reviewed the periodical financial statements and the observations 
of the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. Whenever the committee reviewed 
the Internal Audit Report and the financial statements, on invitation, the Statutory 
Auditors and Internal Auditors attended the Committee Meetings and submitted 
their observations to the Committee. 
 
The details of attendance at Audit Committee Meetings either in person or through 
video conferencing during the financial year 2020-21: 
 
Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Audit Committee 

Meeting(s) 
Held  Held 

during 
tenure 

Attended 

Mr. S. N Barde     5 5 5 
Mr. S. K Goel 5 5 5 
Dr. M Ramachandran  5 5 5 

                   

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

a)  Composition of the Committee. 

 
The current composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as 
follows: 

Name Category 

Mr. S.K Goel Independent 

Dr. M Ramachandran Independent 

Mr. S.N. Barde Non-Executive 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the 
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

b)  Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
During the year ended, a meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was 
held on July 24, 2020 and March 30, 2021.  

 
The details of attendance at Nomination Remuneration Committee Meetings either 
in person or through video conferencing during the financial year 2020-21 
Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee Meeting(s) 
Held  Held 

during 
tenure 

Attended 

S. K Goel 2 2 2 

Dr. M Ramachandran 2 2 2 
Ms. Meena Raghunathan* 2 1 0 

Mr. S.N Barde# 2 1 1 

*Resigned from directorship w.e.f. November 21, 2020 
#Inducted as a member of NRC w.e.f. February 20, 2021 

  
The policy of the company on Directors appointment and remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of directors and other matters 
provided under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board is given as 
Annexure-IV. 
 
There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Independent Directors vis-
à-vis the Company. 
 
 



 

 

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 
a)  Composition of the Committee. 

 

The current composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows: 

Name Category 

Mr. S.N. Barde Non-Executive director 
Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande Executive director 

Dr. M Ramachandran Independent director 

 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meets the 
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

b)  Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

During the year ended, meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting 
was held on July 24, 2020 which was attended by Mr. S.N Barde and Dr. M 
Ramachandran. 
 

6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
a) Composition of the Committee. 

The current composition of the Executive Committee is as follows: 

Name Category 

Mr. S.N. Barde Executive director 

Mr. Ashis Basu 
Executive director 

 
b) Meetings of the Executive Committee: 

During the year ended, meeting of Executive Committee meeting was held on March 
02, 2021 and March 25, 2021. 
 

7.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

a) Details of location and time of holding the last three AGMs: 

Year Location Date & Time Special Items Passed 

2017-18 

No.701/704, 7th Floor, 
Naman Centre, A Wing, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra -400 051 

August 30, 2018 
at 11.00 a.m 

o Appointment of Dr. M 

Ramachandran as 

Independent Director 

o Appointment of Mr. 
Srinivas Bommidala as 
Director. 

2018-19 --------do--------- 

September 27, 
2019 at 11.00 a.m 

o Approval of remuneration 

of the Cost Auditor 

o  Re-appointment of Mr. 
S.K Goel as an 
Independent Director of 
the company 

2019-20 

New Shakti Bhawan, 
New Udaan Bhawan 
Complex, Opp. T-3, IGI 
Airport, New Delhi-
110037 

September 30, 
2020 at 11.00 am 

o Approval of remuneration 

of the Cost Auditor 

o Appointment of Mr. S. 

Rajagopal as an 



 

 

Independent Director of the 

company 

 

b) All special resolutions placed before the shareholders at the above meetings were approved.  

 

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and General 
Meetings. Information and latest updates and announcement regarding the Company and 
about the group can be accessed at Group’s web site: www.gmrgroup.co.in. 
 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

(i) Annual General Meeting  
 

Date  : September 30, 2021 
Time   : 11:00 AM 
Venue : New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan Bhawan Complex, Opp. T-3, 

IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037 
(ii)  Financial calendar  

Year Ending  : March 31, 2021 
(iii)   Site location : Warora taluk, Chandrapur District, Maharashtra 
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For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 
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Managing Director               Whole-time Director 

DIN:00061464                                                   DIN:01872233 

 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 26, 2021 
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Annexure- I 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORTFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointmentand Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 

GMR Warora Energy Limited 

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,  
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra,  
Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR Warora Energy Limited (CIN: 

U40100MH2005PLC155140) (hereinafter called the ‘Company’). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the registers, records, books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the 
provisions of: 
 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable) 

 
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable) 

 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992; 
 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable) 

 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable) 
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations,2008; 

 



 

 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; (Not applicable) and 
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 
(Not applicable). 

 
6. The other major laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company, which 

are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry are: 
 

i. Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules made thereunder 
 

ii. Electricity Supply Act 1948 and the rules made thereunder 
 

iii. The Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. 
 

iv. Electricity Regulatory Commission Act, 1948. 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges read with 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
During the period under review and as per representations and clarifications provided by the 
management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned hereinabove.  
 
WE FURTHER REPORT THAT:  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, 
as the case may be. 
 
We further report that based on review of compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, we are of the 
opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period, the Company has following specific events / 
actions that having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.: 

 
 Mr. S. Rajagopal was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. March 

27, 2020, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company by passing the circular 
resolution dated March 27, 2020, further approved by shareholders of the Company at 
the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020. 



 

 

 Dr. Kavitha Gudapati was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 
February 20, 2021, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company by passing the 
circular resolution dated February 20, 2021. 

 
For S.Behera& Co. 

Company Secretaries 
 
 
Shesdev Behera 

Company Secretary in practice 

CP. No. 5980 

M. No. F-8428 

UDIN: F008428C00054165 

Date:30.06.2021 
Place: New Delhi 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Note: Annexure-‘A’forming an integral part of this Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annexure-‘A’ 
To, 
The Members, 

GMR Warora Energy Limited 

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,  
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra,  
Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on such secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as we considered appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance on the correctness and completeness of the secretarial records. Our 
verification was conducted on a test basis to ensure that all entries have been made as per 
statutory requirements; we believe that the processes and practices we followed for this 
purpose provided a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books 
of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation with respect to 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and of significant events during the year. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of secretarial records on test-check basis to the extent applicable 
to the Company. 

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company.  

 
 
For S.Behera& Co. 

Company Secretaries 
 
 
Shesdev Behera 

Company Secretary in practice 

CP. No. 5980 

M. No. F-8428 

UDIN: F008428C00054165 

 

Date: 30.06.2021 
Place: New Delhi 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Annexure-II 

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy* 
 
GMR Warora Energy Limited (formerly EMCO Energy Limited) (the Company) forming part of 
GMR Group has adopted the CSR Policy of GMR Group (the Group). GMR Group recognizes 
that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore 
an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders 
including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local 
communities and other organizations. 
 
The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by 
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life of 
the local communities.  Towards this vision, the Group including the Company, through GMR 
Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around the businesses to 
drive various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene, sanitation, empowerment, 
livelihood and community development. 

 
Projects / Activities / Programmes proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy  

 
The Company will carry out its CSR activities on its own or contribute funds to GMRVF or 
any other eligible implementing agency, to carry on activities / multiyear projects or 
programmes indicated below. While the geographic focus of the CSR activities can be in and 
around the business operational area, the Company can support activities in any part of 
India, as per the Annual Action Plan, approved by the CSR Committee and the Board: 

 

i) Education: 

 Support for promotion of education of all kinds (school education, technical, higher, 
vocational and adult education), to all ages and in various forms, with a focus on vulnerable 
and under-privileged;  
 Education for girl child and the underprivileged by providing appropriate infrastructure and 
groom them as future citizens and contributing members of society; 
 
ii) Health, Hygiene and Sanitation: 

 Ambulance services, mobile medical units, health awareness programmes and camps, 
medical check-ups, HIV/AIDS awareness initiatives, health care facilities and services, 
sanitation facilities; 
 Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promotion of preventive health care and 
sanitation, and making available safe drinking water; 
 Reducing child mortality and improving maternal health; 
 
iii) Empowerment & Livelihoods: 

 Employment enhancing vocational skills training, marketing support and other initiatives 
for youth, women, elderly, rural population and the differently abled, and livelihood 
enhancement projects; 
 Promoting gender equality, empowering women, working for senior citizens and measures 
for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups; 
 Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise for 
empowerment; 
 
iv) Community Development: 

 Encouraging youth and children to form clubs and participate in community development 
activities such as like cleanliness drives, plantation drives etc; 
 
v) Environmental sustainability:  

 ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, 
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, 
air and water; 
 
*Revised CSR Policy, as approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held June 04, 2021 

vi) Heritage and Culture: 



 

 

 protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites 
of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and 
development of traditional arts and handicrafts; 
 
vii) Benefit to Armed Forces: 
 Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents, 
Central Armed Police Forces (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces (CPMF) veterans, and 
their dependents including widows 
 
viii) Sports: 

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic 
sports; 
 
ix) Contribution to Funds set up by Government: 

Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or Prime Minister’s Citizen 
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other fund set 
up by the Central Government for  socio-economic  development  and relief, and funds for 
the welfare of the Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities 
and women; 
 
x) Contribution towards Science and Technology: 
 
 
 Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the field of science, 
technology, engineering and medicine, funded by the Central Government or the State 
Government or any agency or Public Sector Undertaking of Central Government or State 
Government;  
Contributions to public funded Universities, Indian Institute of Technology (IITs), National 
Laboratories and Autonomous Bodies established under Department of Atomic Energy (DAE); 
Department of Biotechnology (DBT); Department of Science and Technology (DST); 
Department of Pharmaceuticals; Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha 
and Homoeopathy (AYUSH); Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology and other 
bodies, namely Defense Research and Development Organisation (DRDO); Indian Council of 
Agricultural Research (ICAR); Indian Council of Medical Research (ICMR) and Council of 
Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR), engaged in conducting research in science, 
technology, engineering and medicine aimed at promoting Sustainable Development Goals 
(SDGs).    
 
xi) Rural development projects; 
 
x i i )  Slum Area Development:  
 
[The term ‘slum area’ shall mean any area declared as such by the Central Government or 
any State Government or any other competent authority under any law for the time being in 
force] 
 
x i i i ) Disaster management: 

 

Disaster Management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities. 
 

xiv) Such other activities included in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be 
identified by CSR Committee from time to time, which are not expressly prohibited. 
 
It may be noted that the above activities are indicative and are activities that the Company 
may at any point of time engages but all such activities may not be taken up by the Company 
during the financial year. While the activities undertaken in pursuance of the CSR policy must 
be relatable to Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, the entries in the said Schedule VII 
must be interpreted liberally so as to capture the essence of the subjects enumerated in the 
said Schedule. The items enlisted in the amended Schedule VII, are broad-based and are 
intended to cover a wide range of activities. 
 



 

 

The expenditure incurred for the following activities shall not be treated as CSR activity by 
the Company:  
 
(i) Activities undertaken in pursuance of the normal course of business; 
 
(ii) Activities undertaken outside India (except for training of Indian sports personnel 
representing any state or union territory at national level or India at international level); 
(iii) Contribution to political parties; 
(iv) Activities that benefit exclusively the employees of the Company; 
(v) Activities supported by the Company on sponsorship basis for deriving marketing 
benefits for its products or services; 
(vi) Expenses incurred by the Company for the fulfillment of any Act / Statute of 
regulations (such as Labour Laws, Environmental Laws, Land Acquisition Act etc.);  
 
Surplus from CSR Activities 

 
Any surplus arising out of the CSR activity shall: 
 
(i) not form part of business profits of the Company; 

(ii) should be ploughed back into the same project from which it has generated or shall 

be transferred to Unspent CSR Account of the Company, maintained separately for such 

surplus; 

(iii) Should be spent within 3 years from the date of such transfer to the Unsepnt CSR 

Account or transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII within a period of 6 months from the 

expiry of the financial year as decided by the CSR Committee and as per the Annual Action 

plan of the Company;  

(iv) Should not form part of Excess amount available for set-off with CSR obligation in 

immediately succeeding financial years. 

 

Monitoring of CSR Activities 

At the beginning of each financial year, the CSR Committee of the Board will prepare a list of 
CSR Projects / Activities / Programmes which the Company proposes to undertake during such 
financial year, specifying the modalities of execution in the areas / sectors chosen with 
implementation schedules for approval of the Board. 

The CSR Committee of the Board will devise a mechanism for various CSR Projects / Programs 
/ Activities undertaken by the Company including conduct of impact studies of CSR Projects / 
Programs on a periodic basis, through independent third-party agencies according to the CSR 
Rules.  
 

The CSR Committee will convene a meeting at least once in every year to approve and review 
the progress of CSR projects and monitor, review and evaluate the operations of the CSR 
Programmes at such frequency as it may deem fit to ensure orderly and efficient 
implementation of the CSR Programmes in accordance with the CSR Policy. The composition 
of CSR committee, the CSR Policy and Projects approved by the Board will be uploaded on the 
Company’s/group’s website so that it is available in the public domain. 

The Company’s approach to the above CSR activities or projects will also be based on 
partnership with the Government or like-minded not for profit organisations, agencies, etc.  
The Company may carry out an impact assessment to know the results of its CSR activities 
being undertaken by the Company and review periodically to identify and assess the gaps, if 
any, in the approach and attend to mid-course corrections. 
 
Annual Action Plan  

The CSR activities can be undertaken either specific for one year or can undertake multi-year 
projects. The Committee in every financial year, will recommend an Annual Action Plan to the 
Board. This Annual Action plan will detail the following:  

(a) The list of CSR projects or programs that are approved to be undertaken in areas or 

subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act; 

(b) The manner of execution of such projects or programs; 



 

 

(c) The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or 

programs; 

(d) Monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programs; 

(e) Details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the 

Company: Provided that Board may alter such plan at any time during the financial year, as 

per the recommendation of its CSR Committee, based on the reasonable justification to that 

effect. 
 
Amendment 

 
Any amendment or modification in the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable 
regulations relating to the CSR provisions / Policy shall automatically be applicable to the 
Company. 
 
For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 
 

Srinivas Bommidala           Ashis Basu  
Managing Director               Whole-time Director  

DIN:00061464                                                   DIN:01872233 

 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 26, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Annexure-III 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or 

programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR 

policy and projects or programs. 

 

GMR Warora Energy Limited (the Company) forming part of GMR Group has adopted the CSR 

Policy of GMR Group. GMR Group (the Group) recognizes that its business activities have wide 

impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an effective practice is required giving 

due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, 

employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and other organizations. 

 

The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by 
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life of 

the local communities.  Towards this vision, the Group including the Company, through GMR 

Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around the businesses to 

drive various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene, sanitation, empowerment, 

livelihood and community development. 

 

Projects / Activities / Programs proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy  

 

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the Board of 

directors at their meeting held on July 24, 2020, the Company contributes or carries out its 

CSR activities or contribute funds to GMRVF for utilization broadly towards the following 

projects / activities / programs (preference shall be given to the areas in and around the 

project, Warora, Chandrapur, Maharashtra): 

 

The various projects/activities and programs proposed to be entered under CSR Policy are as 

under: 

Educational Programs  

 Education Quality Improvement through initiatives like E- Learning Modules, effective 

Teaching material and processes, etc. in 4 ZP schools and 15 Anganwadi Center Support  

 Computer education in 6 villages to students from class 1 to 7.  

 Navodaya coaching centre in 5 villages for class V students.  

 Supporting students through coaching & transportation.  

Health Hygiene & Sanitation  

 Providing health services to community and creating awareness  

 Achieving ODF in Ten villages.  

 Providing safe drinking water in 18 villages continuing to more than 4500 HHs.  

 COVID Humanitarian Response by providing PPE kits, Sanitizer and health services.  

Empowerment & Livelihoods  

 Vocational training at Warora targeting 220 youths in Assistant Beauty Therapist and 

Mobile Phone Hardware Repair Technician courses.  

 Target 50 women at Warora for tailoring training.  

 Individual Income Generation Activities and support to Women Self Help Groups.  

 Expanding GCS bank business, floriculture and vegetable cultivation with more than 

700 farmers.  

 Continuing Veterinary services in 30 villages and targeting 200 Artificial Insemination.  

 Skilling and livelihood support to post COVID  

 COVID Humanitarian Response: Providing relief material to most vulnerable 

communities.  

 

Community Development  



 

 

 Renovation of 2 Check Dams to conserve rain water and increase irrigated agriculture.  

 Installation of Water ATM in 4 new villages.  

 Supporting construction of more than 150 ISL to make 10 villages ODF free.  

 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee. 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under: 

1. Mr. S.N Barde - whole-time Director 

2. Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande - Director 

3. Dr. M Ramachandran – Independent Director 

 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 

the board are disclosed on the website of the company :- The company related 

information can be accessed through http://www.gmrgroup.in/energy. 

 

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 

applicable (attach the report) :- NA 

 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule (7) of the 

Companies Social Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 

financial year, if any:-  

 

# 
Financial 

Year 

Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial 

years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be setoff 

for the financial year, if 

any (in Rs) 

1 19-20 0 0 

2 20-21 0 0 

3 21-22 0 0 

 TOTAL 0 0 

 

6. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years. 

Average net profits of the Company for last three financial years, calculated as per section 

198 is as under:                                                                         (Amount in Crore) 

Particulars 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Net Profit/(Loss) 192.67 91.99 73.55 

Average net profit 119.40 

Amount to be spent (2% of average net profit) 2.388 

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs.2.388 

Crore 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years.: 0 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): 2.388 Crore 

8. (a ) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :- 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year. 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount.  Date of 

transfer. 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount. Date of 

transfer. 

125,93,861.00 112,87,823.00 March 2021 0 0 0 

http://www.gmrgroup.in/energy


 

 

 

(b) Detail of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:- 
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Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through Implementing 

Agency 

State. District. Name CSR 

Registration 

number. 

A EDUCATION            

A.1 Supporting Govt Anganwadi  Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 6.10 0 6.1 

NO GMRVF CSR0000085

1 

A.2 Supporting Govt Schools  Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 5 15.44 12.62 2.82 NO   

A.3 Providing special Tuitions to 

slow learner students  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 6.21 2.46 3.75 

NO   

A.4 Improving quality education 

through technological 

intervention  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 

5 5.43 2.42 3.01 

NO   

A.5 Supporting community 

Library and Pratibha Library  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 7.80 5.84 1.96 

NO   

B HEALTH HYGIENE AND 

SANITATION 

    
    

   

B.1 Supporting Primary Health 

Services through Health 

Clinic and Health Camps 

Item (i & 

iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 

5 20.92 25.63 -4.71 

NO   

B.2 Providing Primary Health 

Services to Old Aged - Mobile 

Medicare Units  

Item (i & 

iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 

5 22.00 16.21 5.79 

NO   



 

 

B.3 Supporting Pregnant and 

Lactating Mothers – Nutrition 

Centers 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 

5 4.20 2.64 1.56 

NO   

B.4 Supporting community on 

maintaining sanitation and 

hygiene  

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 

5 3.60 6.02 -2.42 

NO   

C EMPPOWERMENT AND 

LIVELIHOODS   

    
    

   

C.1 Vocational Training to the 

unemployed youth  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 23.72 10.56 13.16 

NO   

C.2 Supporting community 

enterprises  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 13.80 15.18 -1.38 

NO   

C.3 Supporting community based 

organization  

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 2.002 0.02 1.982 

NO   

D COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT  

    
    

   

D.1 Developing community 

structures  

Item (iv) Yes MS Chandrapur 
5 96.21 20.63 75.58 

YES   

 Program expenses      227.43 120.23 107.22    

 Overhead expenses       11.37 5.71 5.66    

 TOTAL      238.80 125.94 112.88    
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 

year: N.A. 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: 5. 71 Lakhs 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A. 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 125.94 Lakhs 

(g) Excess amount for Set off, if any 

S. No. Particulars Amount(in Lakh Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 

per section 135(5) for Financial Year 19-20 

238.80 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 20-21 125.94  

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -112.87 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years, if any 

0.000 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 

years 

[(iii)-(iv)] 

0.000 

 

9(a)Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A. 
 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 

preceding financial year(s): N.A. 
 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the 

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year, (asset-wise 

details): N.A. 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 

address and location of the capital asset). 

 

11. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net 

profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall 

provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report: Due to 

COVID 19 most of the field activities were suspended/closed for most part of the year, 

hence budget allocated could not be utilized fully. The same was brought to the notice 

of the CSR Committee which recognized the challenges for under-spending and 

recommended to the Board that the unspent amount will be kept in a separate Unspent 

CSR Account of the company. The same was approved by the Board.  

 

12. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and 

monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 

company: The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with 

CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

 
For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 
 

Srinivas Bommidala           Ashis Basu  
Managing Director               Whole-time Director  

DIN:00061464                                                   DIN:01872233 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 26, 2021 
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Annexure-IV 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY  

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

PERSONNEL  
 
1.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications  
 
(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable laws, 

if any and GMR Group HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and ascertain the 
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as 
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment.  

 
(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and 

experience for the concerned position.  
 
(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing 

Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. 
Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the 
age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution 
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating 
the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.  

 
1.2. Term / Tenure  
 
1.2.1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial 

Personnel)  
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a term 
not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term.  
 
1.2.2. Independent Director  
 
(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the 

Board of the Company and will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.  

 
(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but 

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years 
of ceasing to become an Independent Director.  

 
 Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, 

be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly 
or indirectly.  

 
(c) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number 

of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed 
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent 
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company.  

 
(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a 

director shall not exceed ten.  
 
For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as director, 
directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary company of a public 
company shall be included.  
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1.3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors  
The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles, 
rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company 
operates, business model of the company, etc., through various programmes.  
 
1.4. Evaluation  
Subject to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosures requirement), the Committee shall carry out the evaluation of Directors 
periodically. Further the Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall specify the manner 
for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committee and individual directors 
to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or 
by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 
 
 1.5. Removal  
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made 
thereunder or under any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may 
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP, 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and regulations.  
 
1.6. Retirement  
The Director, KMP and Personnel of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board 
will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Personnel of Senior Management in the 
same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the 
interest and for the benefit of the Company.  
 
2. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, 

KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL  
 
2.1. General  
 
(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel will be 

determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The 
remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of the 
shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.  

 
(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as 

per the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made 
thereunder for the time being in force.  

 
(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be 

recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs 
approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel.  

 
(d) Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-

time Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company 
Secretary for indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any 
negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may 
be guilty in relation to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be 
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.  

 
2.2. Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other 

Employees  

 
 2.2.1. Fixed Pay  

 
 Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved 

by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time 
being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club 
fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 
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Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever 
required. 

 
2.2.2. Minimum Remuneration  
 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 

Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with 
such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.  

 
2.2.3. Provisions for excess remuneration  
 If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of 

remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he 
/ she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in 
trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable 
to it unless permitted by the Central Government.  

 
2.2.4. The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the 

GMR Group HR Policy.  
 

2.2.5. The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the GMR Group HR 
Policy.  

 
2.3. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director  

 
2.3.1. Remuneration / Commission  
 The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.  
 
2.3.2. Sitting Fees  
 The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees 

for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.  
 Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as 

provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such 
amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.  

 The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less 
than the sitting fee payable to other directors.  

 
2.3.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission  
 Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by 

shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company 
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
2.3.4. Stock Options  
 An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

 

For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 
 

Srinivas Bommidala           Ashis Basu  
Managing Director               Whole-time Director  

DIN:00061464                                                   DIN:01872233 

 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 26, 2021 
 
 

 

 
































































































































